
Item # 5



CITY OF SMITHVILLE 
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

November 13, 2023 

Present: Mayor Sharon Foerster, Councilmembers Janice Bruno, Tom Etheredge, Jimmy Jenkins, 
Tyrone Washington, Mitchell Jameson, and City Manager Robert Tamble.  

Open Meeting:  Call to order:  Mayor Pro-tem Etheredge called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 
Councilwoman Bruno gave the Invocation and led the Pledge. 

Closed Meeting: Went into Executive Session at 5:02 PM 

Executive Meeting pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon’s Texas 
Code Annotated, in accordance with the authority contained in Section 551.071 Consultation with 
Attorney to discuss Open Meetings Act training and compliance 

The City Council will hold an Executive Meeting pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 
551, Govt. Code, Vernon’s Texas Code Annotated, in accordance with the authority contained in 
Section 551.074, to discuss personnel (annual evaluation of the City Manager / 2024 Goals & 
Objectives). 

Open Meeting: Came back into Open Session at 6:15 PM 

Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action as a result of the Executive Meeting. 

Recognition/Awards/Proclamations/Announcements/Presentations: 

a. Proclamation for "Day of Thanksgiving": Mayor Foerster read the proclamation.
b. Proclamation for "Honor Our Veterans Day": Councilwoman Bruno Read the

proclamation.
c. Proclamation for "Opposition to Rock Crushing Plant": Councilman Etheredge

read the proclamation.
d. Presentation from Smithville VFW Post 1309: Stephen Barthelme spoke and

said thank you for the support.
e. Presentation from Lorie Vincent on Economic Development
f. Presentation from Stacy Savage on Recycling Center
g. Presentation from Carlos Osuna (Verkada) on Security Cameras

Citizen Comments: None 
Approval of the minutes from the October 16, 2023 Council Meeting and the October 18, 2023 
Special-Called Meeting / Workshop: Councilman Etheredge made a motion to approve the 
October 16, 2023 minutes with the changes given to the City Secretary. Councilman Washington 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. Councilman Etheredge made a motion to 
approve the October 18, 2023 minutes. Councilwoman Bruno seconded and the 
motion passed unanimously.  



Hear from the Applicant/Agent on all P&Z Application requests. 

Hear recommendations from Planning and Zoning on: 

a) A Special Use Permit for a guest house at 801 NE Tiger Lane, Property ID# 16738,
A46 Lomas, L. Acres0.48, property owners Lance Schriner and Sara Hickman:
P&Z Chairman Brian Riewe said the P&Z recommended approving the special use
permit.

b) A re-plat combining two lots into one at 207 San Jacinto, Smithville Townsite,
Block 76 Lot 3 and 4 Property ID#20394 Owner Ian and Ellen Strain-Seymour:
P&Z Chairman Brian Riewe said the P&Z recommended approval of the re-plat.

Public Hearing: 

Hear Citizen Comments: Kent Hanna, Kathy McNamara, Frank McNamara, Clover Green, 
Stephanie McCurry, and Monica Poss all spoke on item A for the Special Use Permit.  

a) A Special Use Permit for a guest house at 801 NE Tiger Lane, Property ID# 16738,
A46 Lomas, L. Acres0.48, property owners Lance Schriner and Sara Hickman.

b) A re-plat combining two lots into one at 207 San Jacinto, Smithville Townsite, Block
76 Lot 3 and 4 Property ID#20394 Owner Ian and Ellen Strain-Seymour.

Open Meeting: 

Discussion and Action from Council on: Sara Hickman Spoke. 

a) A Special Use Permit for a guest house at 801 NE Tiger Lane, Property ID# 16738,
A46 Lomas, L. Acres0.48, property owners Lance Schriner and Sara Hickman: The
property owner is requesting a Special Use Permit (SUP) for a Guest House to provide
space for her elderly mother. The P&Z recommended 4 to 1 approval of a SUP for a
Guest House at 801 Tiger Lane.  Per our Zoning Ordinance, Guest Houses are allowed
in SF1 with a SUP.  Should the council approve the SUP for the Guest House at 801
Tiger Lane, there will be a list of things that will need to be researched and addressed
to ensure compliance with our building codes. The building in question is neither a
manufactured home (governed by HUD) nor a modular home (governed by TDLR).  It
is basically a large 640 sq. ft. storage building converted into what is being called a
“tiny home”. Accessory buildings do not have any minimum square footage
requirement but do require a 3’ side and rear yard setback. Councilman Jenkins made
a motion to approve the Special Use Permit. Councilwoman Bruno seconded and the
motion passed unanimously.



 
b) A re-plat combining two lots into one at 207 San Jacinto, Smithville Townsite, Block 

76 Lot 3 and 4 Property ID#20394 Owner Ian and Ellen Strain-Seymour. 
Councilwoman Bruno made a motion to approve the re-plat. Councilman Jenkins 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  

 
Citizen Comments: Vickie Green, Mark Richter, and Michelle Nelson all spoke.  
Discussion and Possible Action on Obstruction of the Sidewalks in the Downtown Business 
District: City manager Robert Tamble gave a presentation on the issue. Councilwoman Bruno 
made a motion to have Robert modify this ordinance and come back in January with his 
recommendations and to not enforce the current ordinance until it comes back to the Council. 
Councilman Jenkins seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on the Cultural District projects budgeted for 2023/2024: Jill Strube 
presented information to the Council for consideration. Councilman Jameson made a motion to 
fund the top 3 projects proposed by the Cultural District in the amount originally requested (Yarn 
Bombers $1943.00, Courtney Dyer $2,160.00, Michelle Gardella $2,970.00 and spend Hotel 
Occupancy Tax funds to fund the HopeFloats sign. Councilman Etheredge seconded and the 
motion passed unanimously.    
 
 Citizen Comments: Mrs. Schafer 
Discussion and Possible Action with St. Vincent de Paul regarding help with utility bills: Mr. 
Richard Schafer made a presentation to the Council about concerns regarding high utility bills.  
Councilwoman Bruno made a motion for her and the Community Engagement Coordinator to 
come up with some data to inform the Council about this issue and present it back to them. 
Councilman Etheredge seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Smithville 
Workforce Training Center (SWTC) regarding the use of the City of Smithville facilities located 
at 404 Fawcett:  The SWTC Board of Directors approved allocating two (2) city-appointed board 
seats but did not approve the phrase “representing no less than 20% of the board”.  Councilman 
Washington made a motion to approve the MOU. Councilman Etheredge seconded and the vote 
was:  
For: Washington, Etheredge, Jameson, and Jenkins 
Abstain: Bruno 
 
Citizen Comments: Alan Butler 
Discussion and Possible Action on the Tax Note Update: The City Manager provided an update 
regarding the equipment purchased, ordered, and delivered against the Series 2023 Tax Note. 
Councilman Etheredge made a motion to approve the $50,000 baseball field and park upgrades, 
$200,000 playground equipment, and park upgrades, misc facility upgrades, installation on the 
show bard, replacement playscapes at the Train Park, Riverbend Park, and have the basketball 
courts re-striped. Councilman Washington seconded and the motion passed unanimously.   
 



Citizen Comments: 
Discussion on the City of Smithville's website update: Jill Strube provided an overview of the 
website re-design project. No action taken.  
 
Citizen Comments: 
Discussion and Action on Resolution Casting Votes for the Board of Directors of the Bastrop 
Central Appraisal District: Nominations for the BCAD Board of Directors are due.  The City of 
Smithville has 53 votes to cast out of a total of 5000 votes and our nominations are Justin Bezner 
and Jeannie Ralph.  It is recommended to cast 26 votes for each Smithville nominee with the 
“extra” vote going to the candidate of your choice.  The five (5) nominees with the highest number 
of votes will be elected.  Councilman Jameson abstained. Councilman Jenkins made a motion to 
give Jeannie Ralph 27 votes and Justin Bezner 26 votes. Councilwoman Bruno seconded and the 
vote was: 
For: Jenkins, Washington, Etheredge, and Bruno 
Abstain: Jameson 
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on the 2022 Certified Tax Levy for the City of Smithville: In accordance 
with the Texas Property Tax Code 26.09(e), the Council must approve the certified Tax Roll for 
2023.  Property taxes will bring in $2,377,859.70 based on a total assessed value of $ 445,962,142.  
Councilwoman Bruno made a motion to approve the 2023 Certified Tax Levy. Councilman 
Washington seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Discussion and Action on a contract with AT&T for pole attachments: The City has completed 
negotiations with Southwestern Bell Telephone Co. (dba AT&T) to renew our Joint Use Pole 
Attachment Agreement. If approved, the new base rate for the 10-year contract will be increased 
by 20% from $12.50 to $15.00 per pole attachment. AT&T has 588 attachments on our poles.  We 
have 215 attachments on their poles.  The difference is 373 poles.  The expected revenue will be 
approximately $6k per year.  In addition, AT&T has agreed to clear up past-due balances totaling 
$46k.  Councilman Etheredge made a motion to approve the agreement as documented in the 
handout from the City Manager this afternoon. Councilwoman Bruno seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously.  
 
Citizen Comments: None 
Approval of the Financial Report: Councilman Washington made a motion to approve the financial 
report. Councilman Etheredge seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
Adjourn 10:22 p.m. 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Sharon Foerster, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary 



CITY OF SMITHVILLE 
SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

DECEMBER 07, 2023 

Present: Mayor Sharon Foerster, Councilmembers Janice Bruno, Jimmy Jenkins, Tom Etheredge, 
Tyrone Washington, Mitchell Jameson (virtual), City Manager Robert Tamble. 

Open Meeting:  Call to order:  Mayor Foerster called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

Closed Meeting: Went into Executive Session at 3:01 PM 
The City Council held an Executive Meeting pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, 
Govt. Code, Vernon’s Texas Code Annotated, in accordance with the authority contained in 
Section 551.074, to discuss personnel (evaluation and duties of the City Manager).  

Open Meeting: Came out of Executive Session at 4:01 PM 

No action was taken as a result of the Executive Session.  

Adjourn 4:02 p.m. 
___________________________ 
Sharon Foerster, Mayor 

Attest: 

_________________________ 
Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary 



Item #6



















Item# 12































SERVICE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN ALL FUNERAL SERVICES, LLC

And

The City of Smithville (Oak Hill Cemetery and Mount Pleasant Cemetery)

This Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 11th day of December, 2023, by and

between All Funeral Services, LLC, 750 Lexington Avenue, #07-119, New York, NY 10022 (hereinafter “AFS”)

and The City of Smithville (Oak Hill Cemetery and Mount Pleasant Cemetery) located at 317 MAIN STREET P.O.

BOX 449 SMITHVILLE, TEXAS 78957 (hereinafter the “Client”) at various times in this Agreement referred to

herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

AFS offers a multi-modular online technology platform specifically created for the death-care services industry

known as “Cemetery Workstation,” a turnkey online solutions platform that modernizes business operations and

offers an elevated digital experience for cemeteries, crematoriums, funeral directors, families, and vendors. The

Parties desire to enter into this Agreement, on the terms and conditions set forth herein, to provide the Client with

access to Cemetery Workstation and other AFS platforms and services.

1. Cemetery Workstation and Modules. AFS shall provide the Client with access to the Cemetery Workstation and

to additional services delivered through the Cemetery Workstation platform (“Workstation Modules”) on the

terms set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto, “Cemetery Workstation & Modules.” The Client shall be able to

select additional Workstation Modules it would like AFS to later provide, as set forth on Exhibit B attached

hereto, “Additional Workstation Modules.” At any time this Agreement is in effect, Client may elect to

purchase Additional Workstation Modules or, subject to the terms of this Agreement, cease provision of certain

Workstation Modules.

2. Services. Upon execution of this Agreement by both Parties, AFS will immediately begin to provide services to

the Client by providing access to the Cemetery Workstation platform and the selected Workstation Modules.

AFS shall create Cemetery Workstation accounts for each designated user in no more than five (5) business

days from the receipt of the requisite information set forth below. In order to effectively provide these Services,

there are certain enrollment actions that the Client must take to cooperate with AFS and effectuate the intent of

this Agreement. These are generally, and in no way exclusively, as follows:

(i) provide AFS with all requested information and data for Cemetery Workstation, and each requested

Workstation Module;

(ii) provide a list of designated users for the Cemetery Workstation and, for each user, a name, telephone

number, email address, and physical address;



(iii) provide at least one primary contact person for AFS who is authorized to enter into and form contracts

to bind the Client pursuant to this Agreement;

(iv) regularly and promptly update AFS in writing of any changes in the foregoing; and

(v) take any other reasonably requested action requested by AFS to provide Services under this

Agreement.

Failure to take such enrollment actions and timely provide accurate and accessible requested information, or

maintain updated contact information, shall entitle AFS to, at its sole discretion and without notice, to terminate any

or all AFS Services due under this Agreement.

3. Term. The term of this Agreement will start on the date of the execution of this Agreement by the Client and

will continue until terminated by either Party with thirty days (30) written notice to the other Party. Termination

shall not in any way alter any Fees then owing to AFS from the Client, the confidentiality and data protection

obligations set forth herein, and certain other surviving obligations.

4. Fees. The fees for Cemetery Workstation and each Workstation Module are set forth in 4.(i), 4.(ii) and on

Exhibits A and B. Collectively, these are “Fees.” Other than the Fees, no other sums shall be charged by AFS to

Client unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing.

(i) Integration and Digitization: The total purchase price for the record digitization services, as

described on Exhibit A, is defined as $23,000 for the first 4,600 records, thereafter a fee of $5 per

additional record will be charged.

i. Definition of a Record: Within the context of this agreement, a "Record" or “record” refers to

an individual data entry transferred from the Client's database to the Cemetery Workstation

SaaS platform. Each Record represents a specific space, categorized as sold-unused, reserved,

used, or any other non-purchasable category. The Integration Fee applies to each discrete

Record. In cases of spaces housing multiple decedents, an additional charge of $5 is incurred

per extra decedent. For example, a single-decedent space incurs a fee of $5, a space with two

decedents is billed at $10, and one with three decedents will cost $15.

(ii) Software and Maintenance: The total monthly recurring fee for the software described in Exhibit

A and the ongoing maintenance of the same is $3.99% of all transactions, including properties

(Lots/Niches/Crypts) and Services, with a minimum monthly charge of $150 per month.

5. Payments. AFS shall provide the Client with monthly invoices (each an “Invoice” and collectively “Invoices”)

setting forth all Fees owed to AFS pursuant to this Agreement. Client shall have five (5) Business Days from

the date of such Invoice to review each Invoice and discuss any questions regarding the Invoice and/or Fees

with AFS. After this review period, such Invoices shall be immediately due and owing. AFS reserves the right

to charge interest on all outstanding Invoices more than thirty (30) days outstanding. The failure to comply with

the payment terms of this Agreement may result in restriction of access to Cemetery Workstation and/or



Workstation Modules, the termination of this Agreement by AFS, and the retention by AFS of all records held

by AFS and/or any work product created by AFS until such outstanding Invoices are fully satisfied.

The Fees consist of two primary components: the Integration Fee and the Monthly Software Fee.

(i) Integration Fee: Per this Agreement, AFS will digitize up to 4,600 Client Records for a flat fee of

$23,000. This Integration Fee will be due in 4 equal installments of $5,750, which will be reflected

on the monthly Invoices sent to the Client. The installments will be due pursuant to the following

schedule:

i. Upon signing this Agreement

ii. Upon AFS’s completion of digitization and integration of 1,550 Client Records

iii. Upon AFS’s completion of digitization and integration of 3,150 Client Records

iv. Upon AFS’s completion of digitization and integration of 4,600 Client Records

(ii) The Client shall have the right to make payments in excess of the scheduled amounts, or to pay the

outstanding balance in full, at any time prior to the due date, without incurring any penalties or

additional fees for prepayment.

(iii) Pay-As-You-Go Fee Structure for Additional Records: Client agrees to compensate AFS on a

per-record basis for data integration services rendered for records in excess of the 4,600 covered

by the Integration Fee. The agreed-upon fee shall be $5 USD per each additional individual Client

Record successfully integrated into the Cemetery Workstation SaaS platform.

i. Billing and Payment Terms: The Integration Fee will be calculated based on the total number

of Records transferred in a given billing cycle. AFS shall provide an itemized Invoice to

Client on a monthly basis, which will detail the total number of Records integrated and the

total fees for such Records.

(iv) Monthly Subscription Fee: The Client shall also pay a Monthly Subscription Fee of $3.99% of

all transactions, including properties (Lots/Niches/Crypts) and Services, with a minimum monthly

charge of $150 per month. This fee covers ongoing access to, and maintenance of, the Cemetery

Workstation SaaS platform.

(v) Additional Services: These services, namely the Obituary and Cremation Management modules,

will be reflected upon the monthly Invoices, along with any additional services that the Client and

AFS may hereafter agree to in writing.

6. Client Representations. By entering into this Agreement, the Client expressly represents and expressly warrants

to AFS the following:

(i) the Client is a corporation, duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of the

State of Texas or in any other state in which its business is registered or regulated and that it is

registering for the AFS Services within such state;



(ii) the Client has the requisite right, power, and authority to enter into this Agreement, perform its

obligations hereunder, and grant the rights, licenses, and authorizations in this Agreement;

(iii) the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions

contemplated hereby do not conflict with, constitute a default under, or result in a violation under the

provisions of Client’s governing organizational documents, if applicable, or any indenture, mortgage,

lease, loan agreement or other agreement or instrument to which Client is bound, or any Law, or

require any authorization, consent, approval, exemption or other action by or notice to any court or

other governmental authority; and

(iv) any information provided or made available by the Client to AFS is at all times accurate and complete

and AFS shall be entitled to rely on such information in good faith.

7. Indemnification. The Client hereby releases AFS and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless AFS, its

affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, employees, representatives, and agents against any claim, loss,

damage, settlement, cost, expense, or other liability (including, without limitation, attorneys' fees) arising from

or related to: (i) the Client’s actual or alleged breach of any obligations in this Agreement; (ii) Client Personnel

(including any act or omission of Client Personnel or any claim brought or directed by Client Personnel; (iii)

any claim or alleged claim by any third-party against AFS related to this Agreement or Client where such claim

is not the direct result of AFS’s gross negligence or willful misconduct; (iv) any regulatory or criminal

investigation of, or proceeding against, the Client or Client Personnel; or (v) any use or misuse of Cemetery

Workstation or any Workstation Module by the Client or Client Personnel. Client will use counsel reasonably

satisfactory to AFS regarding any claim associated with this Agreement. If at any time AFS reasonably

determines that any existing or future claim might adversely affect AFS, AFS may take control of the defense at

its own expense. Client may not consent to the entry of any judgment or enter into any settlement of a claim

that has the potential to involve AFS without AFS’s prior written consent, which may not be unreasonably

withheld.

8. Disclaimer and General Release AFS portals and websites, including the Cemetery Workstation system,

Workstation Modules, AFS Services, all content, software, functions, materials, and information made available

on or provided in connection with the services, are provided "as is". The Client, as a user of AFS Services,

agrees to use the AFS portals, websites, or services, at its own risk. To the fullest extent permissible by law,

AFS and any of their Affiliates disclaim any obligation, liability, right, claim, or remedy in tort, whether or not

arising from either Party’s negligence. AFS does not warrant that the functions contained in the AFS portals

and Services will meet the Client’s requirements or be available, timely, secure, uninterrupted, or error-free, and

we will not be liable for any service interruptions, including but not limited to system failures or other

interruptions that may affect the receipt, processing, acceptance, completion, or settlement of any transaction.

AFS will not be liable, whether in contract, warranty, tort (including negligence, product liability, or other

theory), or otherwise, to the Client or any other person for the cost of recovery or recoupment of any investment



made by the Client or their Affiliates in connection with this Agreement, or for any loss of profit, revenue,

business, or data or punitive or consequential damages arising out of or relating to this Agreement, even if AFS

has been advised of the possibility of those costs or damages.

9. Insurance. The Client will, at its own expense and as required by applicable rules and regulations, maintain all

necessary liability insurance, and such insurance shall cover all actions contemplated by this Agreement.

10. Taxes. As between the Parties, each Party will be responsible for its own income tax reporting and payment.

With respect to the collection, reporting, and payment of any and all taxes associated with third-party or

customer transactions effectuated by AFS or through the Cemetery Workstation system, the Client will be solely

responsible.

11. Proprietary Rights and Usage Limitations. AFS retains full ownership, control, and intellectual property rights

over the software and its associated products used for in the Cemetery Workstation and each of the Workstation

Modules (collectively referred to as "the Software"). Client acknowledges that the Software, in its entirety,

remains the exclusive property of AFS. Client shall not duplicate, replicate, or reverse engineer the Software, in

whole or in part, in any form or by any means, without the explicit written consent of AFS. This includes but is

not limited to, software code, design elements, functionality, documentation, and any other material or

knowledge pertaining to the Software. The Software is licensed for use solely for the purpose specified in this

Agreement. Client shall not use the Software for any other purpose without prior written permission from AFS.

Unauthorized use or deviation from the specified purpose constitutes a breach of this Agreement. AFS reserves

the right to take legal action to enforce these provisions and protect its proprietary interests. Client

acknowledges and agrees that any violation of this Article would cause AFS irreparable harm, for which

monetary damages would be insufficient, and that AFS shall therefore be entitled to equitable relief, including

injunction and specific performance, in addition to any other remedies available under applicable law. The

obligations under this Article shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

12. Confidentiality. Neither Party nor their respective officers, directors, or employees shall disclose the terms of

this Agreement to any unaffiliated third party without the prior written consent of the other Party, except

pursuant to a valid court order or as otherwise required by applicable regulation or law. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, AFS shall have the right to publicly list the Client as one of its customers in its promotional

materials.

13. Confidential Information. For the purposes of this agreement, "Confidential Information" shall refer to any

non-public information, including but not limited to trade secrets, business strategies, financial data, customer

information, customer lists, technical specifications, and any other proprietary or confidential information

disclosed by one Party ("Disclosing Party") to the other Party ("Receiving Party") during the term of this



Agreement. The Receiving Party shall treat all Confidential Information received from the Disclosing Party as

strictly confidential. The Receiving Party shall not disclose or reveal the Confidential Information to any third

party without the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party, except as expressly permitted under this

agreement. The Receiving Party shall use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose of fulfilling its

obligations under this agreement and shall not use the Confidential Information for its own benefit or for any

other purpose without the Disclosing Party's prior written consent. The Receiving Party shall take reasonable

measures to protect the Confidential Information from unauthorized access, use, or disclosure, using at least the

same degree of care as it uses to protect its own confidential information of a similar nature. The Receiving

Party's confidentiality obligations shall not apply to any information that: (i) was rightfully known to the

Receiving Party prior to its disclosure by the Disclosing Party; (ii) becomes publicly known through no fault of

the Receiving Party; (iii) is independently developed by the Receiving Party without reference to or use of the

Confidential Information; or (iv) is lawfully obtained by the Receiving Party from a third party without any

restriction on disclosure. The Parties acknowledge that a breach of this confidentiality provision may cause

irreparable harm to the Disclosing Party. Therefore, in addition to any other remedies available at law or in

equity, the Disclosing Party shall be entitled to seek injunctive relief to enforce the confidentiality obligations

set forth herein.

14. Data Custody and Access. Client retains full ownership and control of all information, data, and records

(collectively referred to as "the Data") produced, collected, or otherwise processed by the Software provided

AFS. AFS acknowledges that the Data, in its entirety, remains the exclusive property of the Client. AFS will not

use, reproduce, distribute, or disclose the Data for any purposes other than those expressly permitted in this

Agreement, unless prior written consent is provided by the Client. The obligations under this Article shall

survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

15. Data Protection and Privacy. The Parties shall comply with all applicable data privacy and security laws,

including but not limited to the New York General Business Law, Article 39-F (Security Breach Notification

Act), the New York State Department of Financial Services (NYDFS) Cybersecurity Regulation (23 NYCRR

Part 500), and the New York SHIELD Act (Stop Hacks and Improve Electronic Data Security Act). In the event

of a data breach or security incident, the Party responsible for the breach shall promptly notify the other Party in

accordance with the requirements set forth by the applicable laws and regulations. The Parties shall cooperate in

good faith to address the breach, mitigate damages, and comply with all necessary reporting obligations. The

Parties shall implement reasonable administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to protect any personal

information or sensitive data collected, stored, or processed under this Agreement. Such safeguards shall align

with the requirements set forth by the applicable data privacy laws. The Parties acknowledge that data privacy

and security are important considerations, and they shall take all necessary measures to safeguard personal

information and maintain the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of data.



16. Relationship of the Parties. Nothing in this Agreement will create any partnership, joint venture, agency,

franchise, sales representative, or employment relationship between the Parties. This Agreement will not create

an exclusive relationship between Client and AFS. This Agreement and all of the representations, warranties,

covenants, conditions, and provisions in this Agreement are intended to be and are for the sole and exclusive

benefit of AFS and the Client.

17. Modification. This Agreement may be amended or modified, in whole or in part, only by an instrument in

writing signed by all Parties hereto. All notices of changes to the services or general product functions will be

noticed to the Client via electronic communication. Client’s continued use of the AFS inventory products,

portal, and Services after AFS’s posting of any changes will constitute acceptance of such changes or

modifications.

18. Disputes / Governing Law. The Parties agree that any dispute or controversy arising under or in connection with

this Agreement shall be heard by and through arbitration, conducted before a panel of three arbitrators in New

York State in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association, then in effect. The expense of

such arbitration shall be split between the Parties; however, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recovery of

all costs expended on such arbitration, including legal costs. Any claim, controversy, or dispute arising from this

Agreement or related to this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of New York State. In addition, each of

the Parties to this Agreement irrevocably agrees that any legal action or proceeding with respect to this

Agreement and the rights and obligations arising under this Agreement, or for recognition and enforcement of

any judgment in respect of this Agreement and the rights and obligations arising under this Agreement brought

by the other Party to this Agreement or its successors or assigns shall be brought and determined exclusively in

the state or federal courts located in New York County, New York. The Parties hereto irrevocably submit to the

exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of New York and waive any objection to the laying of venue in,

and any claim of inconvenient forum with respect to New York State courts. The Parties further expressly waive

their right to trial by jury. The prevailing Party shall receive reasonable attorney fees and costs from the losing

Party for any action brought pursuant to this Agreement.

19. Assignment. Neither Party may assign this Agreement, by operation of law or otherwise, without prior written

consent of the other Party. Subject to that restriction, this Agreement will be binding on, and be enforceable

against the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.

20. No Waiver. AFS’s failure to enforce strict performance of any provision of this Agreement will not constitute a

waiver of AFS’s right to enforce such provision or any other provision of this Agreement subsequently.



21. Severability. In the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid or unenforceable in

whole or in part, all other provisions will nevertheless continue to be valid and enforceable with the invalid or

unenforceable parts severed from the remainder of this Agreement.

22. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts via electronic mail or facsimile, all of which,

taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the

last party.

Client All Funeral Services, LLC:

Signature: Signature:

Full Name: Full Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

SS#/EIN: SS#/EIN: 82-2772475



Exhibit A

CEMETERYWORKSTATION &WORKSTATION MODULES

Module Description Pricing

Sales Management The Sales Management Module, forming part of the Cemetery

Workstation software, is engineered to enable and facilitate the

electronic sales of cemetery properties and services. Such services

encapsulate but are not limited to, the management of in-ground

burials and mausoleum entombment properties, both through online

channels and onsite operations. The module underpins electronic

payments and employs electronic signatures from both the cemetery

and the buyer, thereby streamlining and simplifying the sales process.

Additionally, it allows for the creation of tailored contracts and

electronic deeds specific to each transaction's needs. This module's

operational efficiency extends across all areas within the cemetery

grounds

3.9% of all

transactions,

including properties

(Lots/Niches/Crypts)

and Services, with a

minimum monthly

charge of $150.

Inventory

Management

The Inventory Management Module, a crucial component of the

Cemetery Workstation software, offers a thorough system to capture,

organize, manage, and search the cemetery's inventory of properties.

It includes the digitization of the cemetery's internal records to form a

foundational dataset, eases onsite inventory verification, and

reconciles this dataset with the onsite inventory. This ensures an

accurate, consistent, and reliable inventory management system. The

Inventory Management Module is available in three distinct versions:

Full, Lite, and Self, each providing different levels of features and

services, detailed in the subsequent sections of this agreement

See below

Inventory Full Details of the Full Version:

The Full version of the Inventory Management Module offers a

comprehensive inventory management solution. It includes advanced

features like geolocation services and digital photography of each

occupied lot, providing a more detailed and extensive understanding

of the cemetery's assets. This version is designed for clients requiring

a deeper level of inventory insight and management capabilities.

$23,000 for the first

4,600 records,

thereafter a fee of $5

per additional

record will be

charged for each

space, whether it's

sold (used or



Full-Service Package Inclusions:

Our full-service package complements the Full version of the

Module, ensuring complete execution of the inventory management

project. We deploy a representative to your site for comprehensive

task management, including scanning up to three physical artifacts

per record (additional charges apply for extra items), capturing

detailed photographs of all spaces and headstones, and assigning

precise geolocations to every space. This service elevates the

standard functionalities of the Full version, ensuring a thorough and

comprehensive record of the cemetery's assets.

unused) or reserved.

Additionally, for

spaces with multiple

decedents, a charge

of $5 applies for

each individual

decedent. For

instance, a space

with two decedents

will be billed at $10,

and a space with

three will be $15.

An initial minimum

charge of $5,000

shall be applicable.

Work Orders

Management

The Work Orders Management Module, integrated into the Cemetery

Workstation software, is poised to orchestrate the lifecycle of work

orders related to cemetery operations. This exhaustive module covers

the creation, distribution, and tracking of work orders, ensuring

seamless execution of daily tasks. It can convert both aftercare and

interment arrangements into actionable work orders and enables the

creation of ad hoc regular work orders, thus ensuring a responsive

operational framework. Additionally, the module facilitates capturing

before and after photographs via a mobile app, providing real-time,

visual documentation of task completion

Free With Sales

Management

Module



Interment

Arrangements

The Interment Arrangements Module, an integral component of the

Cemetery Workstation software, is tailored to handle the logistical

aspects of burials. This module oversees and manages burial

scheduling, gravesite allocation, and communication with all parties

involved, ensuring a smooth, respectful process. It also enables

Funeral Homes to complete Interment Arrangements online,

providing a digital platform for efficient coordination. With the

integration of status tracking capabilities, digital notifications, and

daily, weekly, and monthly views, this module allows for

comprehensive oversight and effective management of burial

schedules. It also incorporates time buffers between arrangements to

ensure respectful and unhurried services.

Free With Sales

Management

Module

Cremations

Management

The Cremations Management Module serves as a comprehensive

digital platform for managing cremation processes. This module

enables online cremation reservations from funeral homes and

integrates a Stripe payment system for the secure and timely

settlement of cremation fees. It provides real-time tracking of

cremation stages and maintains transparency with funeral homes

regarding the status and milestones of the cremations in their care.

The module also automates the generation of all required cremation

documents, thereby simplifying the documentation process.

Additionally, it facilitates online scheduling of cremations, including

the delivery date and time, witness services, and collection of the

cremains. It expedites the formalization of cremation transactions

through a digital documents feature, eliminating the need for physical

documents. This module incorporates a dedicated mobile application,

"MyCrematorium" available on both iPhone and Android platforms,

providing portable crematorium management functionality.

$7 per arrangement

Public Solutions The Public Solutions module, a part of the All Funeral Services

software suite, offers an array of capabilities designed to augment

public access to cemetery information and services. It includes an

Interactive Lot Selector, facilitating online exploration, selection, and

purchase of cemetery properties and services, as well as scheduling

sales appointments. The module also introduces a Genealogical

Records Search, integrated into the cemetery's website, allowing

families to locate decedents, access memorial pages, and engage in

one-click aftercare transactions. Lastly, it includes a Website feature,

See Below



acting as a comprehensive digital ecosystem that connects on-site

sales, public search portals, and family portals, with the potential for

custom development to tailor the content to the cemetery's unique

values and needs.

Interactive Lot

Selector

The Interactive Lot Selector, a digital tool integrated into the

cemetery's website, offers a real-time, interactive map of the

cemetery. This tool is designed for user convenience, enabling visual

exploration of available lots, mausoleums, and columbariums,

complete with high-resolution images, descriptions, and locations. It

provides a verification workflow for lot availability, allowing users to

select and potentially purchase available plots and schedule

appointments with cemetery staff.

Free With Sales

Management

Module

Genealogical Records

Search

The Genealogical Records Search module, provided by All Funeral

Services, is a specialized software feature that allows public access to

the cemetery's burial records. It enables families and individuals to

locate decedents across the entire cemetery. The feature integrates an

interactive map, showcasing real-time status and locations within the

cemetery. The module enhances the user experience by presenting

memorial pages with monument images, GPS burial locations, and

more. It also potentially facilitates revenue generation for the

cemetery through one-click aftercare transactions. The Genealogical

Records Search module is designed to foster a connection between

families, their heritage, and the cemetery, upholding utmost

efficiency and transparency.

Free With Inventory

Management

Module

Website

The Cemetery Website Module, provided by All Funeral Services, is

a comprehensive digital solution tailored to enhance the cemetery's

online presence through custom website design and development.

The service includes a variety of features such as historical content,

service descriptions, lot availability, geolocation-enabled dynamic

maps, and searchable genealogical and burial records. The website

will be device-agnostic, scalable and will utilize modern IT practices.

Customization options will be available to ensure the website aligns

with the cemetery's unique values and requirements. The Module will

integrate key cemetery services into a single platform, facilitating a

seamless user experience and efficient operations.

Free With Inventory

Management

Module



Aftercare The Aftercare Module is designed to foster post-sale revenue through

the provision of digital aftercare and management services. These

services primarily encompass monument care, including tasks such as

cleaning, maintenance, repair, and restoration, as well as facilitating

flower delivery and planting at memorial sites. By leveraging online

platforms and automated digital communication tools, the Module

enables sustained client engagement beyond the initial transaction,

creating additional, consistent revenue streams for the cemetery. It

also expands the cemetery's service offerings, fostering a holistic and

ongoing relationship with clients.

$5 per Aftercare

Order

Family Portal The Family Portal Module (the "Module") is a digital platform that

provides a personalized online experience, enabling families to

manage and view their purchased cemetery services, such as burial

plots, records, and aftercare services. This includes an integrated

system for ordering aftercare services and a comprehensive payment

management system that handles both ad-hoc and recurring

payments. The Module also incorporates a secure e-signature feature

for digital signing of necessary documents. The aim of the Module is

to foster an ongoing relationship between the cemetery and families,

streamline service delivery, simplify account management, and

enhance overall customer satisfaction.

Free With Sales

Management

Module

Obituary The Obituary Module (the "Module") is a dedicated platform that

allows families to create, share, and archive obituaries. This interface

aids the creation of detailed and multimedia-enriched obituaries and

enables their seamless distribution within and beyond the Module's

community. For long-term storage, obituaries are securely archived

within the system. To facilitate remembrance and respect and to

contribute to the historical record of the cemetery community, a

nominal fee is charged for placing an obituary on the cemetery's

official website. This provision aims to foster a personal and

communal space of comfort and historical significance while

supporting the maintenance and operation of the digital platform.

$5 per Obituary

Order



Exhibit B

ADDITIONALWORKSTATION MODULES Available for purchase

Module Description Pricing

Sales Management The Sales Management Module, forming part of the Cemetery

Workstation software, is engineered to enable and facilitate the

electronic sales of cemetery properties and services. Such services

encapsulate but are not limited to, the management of in-ground

burials and mausoleum entombment properties, both through online

channels and onsite operations. The module underpins electronic

payments and employs electronic signatures from both the cemetery

and the buyer, thereby streamlining and simplifying the sales process.

Additionally, it allows for the creation of tailored contracts and

electronic deeds specific to each transaction's needs. This module's

operational efficiency extends across all areas within the cemetery

grounds

3.9% of the

transaction,

including properties

(Lots/Niches/Crypts)

and Services, with a

minimum monthly

charge of $150.

Inventory

Management

The Inventory Management Module, a crucial component of the

Cemetery Workstation software, offers a thorough system to capture,

organize, manage, and search the cemetery's inventory of properties.

It includes the digitization of the cemetery's internal records to form

a foundational dataset, eases onsite inventory verification, and

reconciles this dataset with the onsite inventory. This ensures an

accurate, consistent, and reliable inventory management system. The

Inventory Management Module is available in three distinct versions:

Full, Lite, and Self, each providing different levels of features and

services, detailed in the subsequent sections of this agreement

See below

Inventory Full Details of the Full Version:

The Full version of the Inventory Management Module offers a

comprehensive inventory management solution. It includes advanced

features like geolocation services and digital photography of each

occupied lot, providing a more detailed and extensive understanding

of the cemetery's assets. This version is designed for clients requiring

a deeper level of inventory insight and management capabilities.

We charge $4.99 for

each space, whether

it's sold (used or

unused) or reserved.

Additionally, for

spaces with multiple

decedents, a charge

of $4.99 applies for



Full-Service Package Inclusions:

Our full-service package complements the Full version of the

Module, ensuring complete execution of the inventory management

project. We deploy a representative to your site for comprehensive

task management, including scanning up to three physical artifacts

per record (additional charges apply for extra items), capturing

detailed photographs of all spaces and headstones, and assigning

precise geolocations to every space. This service elevates the

standard functionalities of the Full version, ensuring a thorough and

comprehensive record of the cemetery's assets.

each individual

decedent. For

instance, a space

with two decedents

will be billed at

$9.98, and a space

with three will be

$14.97." An initial

minimum charge of

$5,000 shall be

applicable.

Work Orders

Management

The Work Orders Management Module, integrated into the Cemetery

Workstation software, is poised to orchestrate the lifecycle of work

orders related to cemetery operations. This exhaustive module covers

the creation, distribution, and tracking of work orders, ensuring

seamless execution of daily tasks. It can convert both aftercare and

interment arrangements into actionable work orders and enables the

creation of ad hoc regular work orders, thus ensuring a responsive

operational framework. Additionally, the module facilitates capturing

before and after photographs via a mobile app, providing real-time,

visual documentation of task completion

Free With Sales

Management

Module

Interment

Arrangements

The Interment Arrangements Module, an integral component of the

Cemetery Workstation software, is tailored to handle the logistical

aspects of burials. This module oversees and manages burial

scheduling, gravesite allocation, and communication with all parties

involved, ensuring a smooth, respectful process. It also enables

Funeral Homes to complete Interment Arrangements online,

providing a digital platform for efficient coordination. With the

integration of status tracking capabilities, digital notifications, and

daily, weekly, and monthly views, this module allows for

comprehensive oversight and effective management of burial

schedules. It also incorporates time buffers between arrangements to

ensure respectful and unhurried services.

Free With Sales

Management

Module



Cremations

Management

The Cremations Management Module serves as a comprehensive

digital platform for managing cremation processes. This module

enables online cremation reservations from funeral homes and

integrates a Stripe payment system for the secure and timely

settlement of cremation fees. It provides real-time tracking of

cremation stages and maintains transparency with funeral homes

regarding the status and milestones of the cremations in their care.

The module also automates the generation of all required cremation

documents, thereby simplifying the documentation process.

Additionally, it facilitates online scheduling of cremations, including

the delivery date and time, witness services, and collection of the

cremains. It expedites the formalization of cremation transactions

through a digital documents feature, eliminating the need for physical

documents. This module incorporates a dedicated mobile application,

"MyCrematorium" available on both iPhone and Android platforms,

providing portable crematorium management functionality.

$7 per arrangement

Public Solutions The Public Solutions module, a part of the All Funeral Services

software suite, offers an array of capabilities designed to augment

public access to cemetery information and services. It includes an

Interactive Lot Selector, facilitating online exploration, selection, and

purchase of cemetery properties and services, as well as scheduling

sales appointments. The module also introduces a Genealogical

Records Search, integrated into the cemetery's website, allowing

families to locate decedents, access memorial pages, and engage in

one-click aftercare transactions. Lastly, it includes a Website feature,

acting as a comprehensive digital ecosystem that connects on-site

sales, public search portals, and family portals, with the potential for

custom development to tailor the content to the cemetery's unique

values and needs.

See Below



Interactive Lot

Selector

The Interactive Lot Selector, a digital tool integrated into the

cemetery's website, offers a real-time, interactive map of the

cemetery. This tool is designed for user convenience, enabling visual

exploration of available lots, mausoleums, and columbariums,

complete with high-resolution images, descriptions, and locations. It

provides a verification workflow for lot availability, allowing users to

select and potentially purchase available plots and schedule

appointments with cemetery staff.

Free With Sales

Management

Module

Genealogical Records

Search

The Genealogical Records Search module, provided by All Funeral

Services, is a specialized software feature that allows public access to

the cemetery's burial records. It enables families and individuals to

locate decedents across the entire cemetery. The feature integrates an

interactive map, showcasing real-time status and locations within the

cemetery. The module enhances the user experience by presenting

memorial pages with monument images, GPS burial locations, and

more. It also potentially facilitates revenue generation for the

cemetery through one-click aftercare transactions. The Genealogical

Records Search module is designed to foster a connection between

families, their heritage, and the cemetery, upholding utmost

efficiency and transparency.

Free With Inventory

Management

Module

Website

The Cemetery Website Module, provided by All Funeral Services, is

a comprehensive digital solution tailored to enhance the cemetery's

online presence through custom website design and development.

The service includes a variety of features such as historical content,

service descriptions, lot availability, geolocation-enabled dynamic

maps, and searchable genealogical and burial records. The website

will be device-agnostic, scalable and will utilize modern IT practices.

Customization options will be available to ensure the website aligns

with the cemetery's unique values and requirements. The Module will

integrate key cemetery services into a single platform, facilitating a

seamless user experience and efficient operations.

Free With Inventory

Management

Module



Aftercare The Aftercare Module is designed to foster post-sale revenue through

the provision of digital aftercare and management services. These

services primarily encompass monument care, including tasks such

as cleaning, maintenance, repair, and restoration, as well as

facilitating flower delivery and planting at memorial sites. By

leveraging online platforms and automated digital communication

tools, the Module enables sustained client engagement beyond the

initial transaction, creating additional, consistent revenue streams for

the cemetery. It also expands the cemetery's service offerings,

fostering a holistic and ongoing relationship with clients.

$5 per Aftercare

Order

Family Portal The Family Portal Module (the "Module") is a digital platform that

provides a personalized online experience, enabling families to

manage and view their purchased cemetery services, such as burial

plots, records, and aftercare services. This includes an integrated

system for ordering aftercare services and a comprehensive payment

management system that handles both ad-hoc and recurring

payments. The Module also incorporates a secure e-signature feature

for digital signing of necessary documents. The aim of the Module is

to foster an ongoing relationship between the cemetery and families,

streamline service delivery, simplify account management, and

enhance overall customer satisfaction.

Free With Sales

Management

Module

Obituary The Obituary Module (the "Module") is a dedicated platform that

allows families to create, share, and archive obituaries. This interface

aids the creation of detailed and multimedia-enriched obituaries and

enables their seamless distribution within and beyond the Module's

community. For long-term storage, obituaries are securely archived

within the system. To facilitate remembrance and respect and to

contribute to the historical record of the cemetery community, a

nominal fee is charged for placing an obituary on the cemetery's

official website. This provision aims to foster a personal and

communal space of comfort and historical significance while

supporting the maintenance and operation of the digital platform.

$5 per Obituary

Order



Item# 13















Item #16







Item # 17



1 
 

Proposal for TCA Grant Application from Janus Lee 
GRANT DEADLINE: January 16, 2024 

This grant template reflects all the questions and requirements that will need to be uploaded to the TCA Portal. 
NOTE: Ms. Lee did not provide all elements of the grant template provided. If selected, we will need to work with 
her to get more information in the format that TCA will require it. 

 
Application Title: Smithville Sustainable Art Garden 
 

STANDARD ANSWER: Mission Statement: Smithville’s Richard D. Latham Cultural District Primary Partners (City 
of Smithville and Lost Pines Artisans ’Alliance) intend to use Arts, History, and Culture for Economic 
Development purposes to enhance the quality of life for residents and visitors through programming designed 
to highlight the Cultural District. The City of Smithville expects that promoting the Cultural District as part of an 
economic development strategy will support our goal of improving the quality of life for our citizens. 

 

Priority Area: Natural Resources & Agricultural 

Other choices – only one can be selected  

• Economic Development 
• Education 
• Health and Human Services (including Veterans) 
• Public Safety & Criminal Justice 

 

Period of Support 

Starting Dates - Begin: April 1, 2024 
Ending Dates - End: August 31, 2024 
Payment Date: April 1, 2024 

 
Audience Information: 
How many adults (over age 18) will be engaged in "in person": 5 Adults 
How many children/youths (0-18 years) will be engaged in "in person": 8 Children 
*Total Audience: * 13 Total 
 
Indicate if this proposal serves: Choose all that apply—by TCA definition, this only applies to Cultural Tourism 

• Arts Education (Pre-K) 
• Arts Education (K-12) 
• Arts Education (teachers or adults) 
• Cultural Tourism 
• International exchange (artist or art; import or export) 

 
By best estimates at this time, no single group makes up 25% or more of the population served directly by 
this project. 
 
Population Served by Race/Ethnicity:  
• (09) No single group makes up 25% 
 



2 
 

Population Served by Age: 
• (09) No single group makes up 25% 
 
Distinct Groups Served: 
• (G) No single group makes up 25% 
 
One sentence summary of the project (250 characters)  

(No answer from Janus) 
 
One-page organizational history: (approximately 400 words) STANDARD ANSWER 

The TCA officially designated Smithville’s Cultural District on September 5, 2013. A tremendous honor, this 
reflects the hard-working ethics and strong collaboration between the members of the Lost Pines Artisans 
Alliance (LPAA), the volunteer historians in the Smithville Heritage Society, the City of Smithville municipal 
government, and numerous community members and organizations. The City became the fiscal agent in March, 
2016, and in October, 2019, the organization changed from a "steering committee" to a "liaison" structure that 
institutes no fewer than two public meetings per year intended to determine Cultural District projects and use of 
funds. The numbers for the Board include both the Mayor/City Council and the Lost Pines Artisans Alliance 
Board members. Staff include the LPAA Liaison, the City Liaison, the City Manager, the Library Director (the 
Department in which the Cultural District is housed at the City), the City's Community Engagement Coordinator, 
and the City's Finance Director. The Smithville Cultural District was formally named after Richard D. Latham, one 
of this town's most prolific patrons of the arts. Latham championed public arts projects like the Train Sculpture 
at Riverbend Park, the "Art on a Stick" program, outdoor murals, and many other endeavors. A long-time 
volunteer and past president of LPAA, Richard was the Chamber's Citizen of the Year in 2012. Richard coined the 
phrase "It’s Possible in Smithville." The City is grateful for his service. Smithville is a small, rural community in 
Central Texas. The city limits extend about two miles in diameter, making things possible here that would be 
difficult to attempt at a larger scale. Smithville’s Cultural District boundaries encompass roughly half of that land 
area. The Mary Nichols ’Art Center is at the heart of a geography that includes assets like the Veterans Memorial 
Park, Independence Park, the Heritage House, the LD Clark Writers ’Retreat, the James H. Long Railroad Park and 
Museum, the historic Central School, Red Brick building, Playhouse Smithville, and numerous galleries, artist 
studios and arts and crafts workspaces and shops. The City, the LPAA, Heritage Society, Public Library, Smithville 
Area Chamber of Commerce, and numerous other organizations and individuals continue to work diligently to 
provide our citizens and visitors with many rich cultural and artistic experiences including the Texas Photo 
Festival, the American Library Association/National Endowment for the Humanities ’Bridging Cultures program, 
the StoryCorps oral history project, the NEA-funded "Arts Bridging Community" public art projects, and other 
projects, events, and programs. 

 

One-page project description (include specific information on the project including the key personnel, 
targeted audience, and goals): (approximately 400 words) 

WHERE — Smithville Community Garden  

WHAT — ‘Make Gardening Cool Again’ intends a permanent art installation at SCG with a painted vegetable 
mural. Through creative place-making we will beautify a public space, promote gardening, create a new 
Smithville destination for “selfies”, and build a garden party or farm-to-table dinner setting initiated 
by community members.  

To accomplish this, committed people of all ages and varying skill levels work and learn together with the 
benefit of free or donation-based art classes as we design and paint a giant vegetable mural. In this process, we 
explore the dynamics of growing food as well as learn mural painting skills. 



3 
 

KEY PERSONNEL-- Janus Lee is the originator of this project’s vision and direction. As an experienced Creative 
Director, Janus is well-equipped to provide not only the creative vision but the practical site-specific design, the 
technical execution of this vision, and the overall experience that comes with collaboration with others, 
including input from Gardeners in the Smithville area. 

Janus Lee, an award-winning artist, illustrator, and art educator works on various substrates in a variety of 
mediums. Since 2014, Janus has artwork permanently installed at The Hite Institute of Art 
(http://louisville.edu/art/facilities-resources/ in Louisville, KY, as part of the International Honor Quilt (IHQ) — a 
community art project which traveled the world since 1983 in conjunction with the Judy Chicago Dinner Party 
Project. Janus continues exhibiting her work in various states, including Michigan, Florida, Oklahoma, and 
throughout Texas. Early in 2023, Janus created a 20’ x 6’ crosswalk mural, Flower to the People, in Bastrop, TX. 
Also in early 2023, Janus produced her one-woman art show in Elgin, TX: Native Americana: No Place Like Home. 
As the featured artist for the summer of 2022 at Lost Pines Art Center in Bastrop, you can see some of her work 
in this short video from her American Dreams: Lost & Found exhibit, here: https://youtu.be/zslo1yPM2Rg 

PLAN FOR PUBLIC PARTICIPATION -- To involve the broadest range of Smithville residents possible, we plan to 
offer outdoor art classes in vegetable mural painting at SCG. 

GOALS -- One goal of public art projects is that of bringing people of different ages and backgrounds together to 
learn from and enjoy one another. People working on individual aspects of a greater whole are seeing how 
valuable they can be in taking ownership of their own contribution. 

(385 words) 
 

How will this project attract cultural tourists to your Cultural District? (approximately 200 words) 

CULTURAL TOURISTS: CULTURE + AGRICULTURE = ART 
The process of creative space-making at Smithville Community Gardens will provide educational opportunities in 
practical arts education for people of all ages, abilities and backgrounds. This is especially beneficial for those 
wanting to better understand how food is produced.  

This entire process provides growth opportunities for robust community engagement in Smithville, in part 
through free or donation-based art classes in the creation of our onsite murals. This includes those visiting 
Smithville at different stages of development in this project, as well as Smithville residents. 

When completed, our creative space-making project will function as the start of a fair-weather outdoor event 
venue, extending current usage of SCG. Through collaboration with the greater Smithville community, we can 
foster a sense of ownership and a better environment of belonging. In so doing, we can provide an ongoing 
example of innovation in agriculture and other practical arts to benefit and inspire visitors to Smithville, as well 
as Smithville residents. 

(162 words) 

How will you track the economic impact of this project? (approximately 200 words) 

(No answer from Janus) 
 
 
How will you ensure the artistic quality of this project will be high? (approximately 200 words) 

As an award-winning artist with 40 years’ experience in a variety of art mediums and substrates, Janus Lee will 
direct the project planning and art execution at every stage of production. As needed or desired, other artists 
and/or art educators with relevant skills could also be involved in limited capacities under this same project 
direction.  

Janus is an experienced educator using innovative practices and products in assisting others to grow into their 
best selves. She writes: “In the many jobs I’ve held, in art, healing, and on farms, the work that brings me the 

http://louisville.edu/art/facilities-resources/
https://youtu.be/zslo1yPM2Rg


4 
 

most satisfaction is that which is productive. Artwork, like farming, brings something completely new into being, 
so there is a common thread in the end results. With both art and agriculture, there are big elements of 
uncertainty at various stages, which we learn to accept as a given, even a gift”. 

“As a child, identifiable leaf shapes were one of the first things I ever drew with crayons. My artwork was shown 
at Prizer Arts & Letters *Farmer as Artist* exhibits in Austin for three consecutive years, reflecting my long-time 
botanical art bent. As an undergrad, I took every botany class possible for my B.A. degree in design, art, and 
biology. After working as a graphic artist, publication designer and illustrator, I changed my plans for a master’s 
degree in medical illustration and moved to Austin TX to complete a master’s degree in Asian Medicine more 
than 20 years ago”.  

(244 words – over the limit) 
 
Budget information from previous email – not provided in the format needed for the grant – I will work with 
Ms. Lee if she is selected to put it into the proper format. 
 
From: Janus Lee <artofmedicine@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, November 8, 2023 4:37 PM 
To: Jill Strube <JStrube@ci.smithville.tx.us> 
Subject: Re: Smithville Cultural District Proposal 
 
Jill —  
 
As for budget changes to my proposal, there are several. Will this impact the TCA grant that’s pending at all? 
This afternoon, I left you a voice mail in this regard, but will go ahead and list what I mentioned at the Smithville 
Cultural District meeting on Monday: 
1) with the withdrawal of Jo Watts from this project we are eliminating the clay pinch pots for growing herbs 
and related classes that were budgeted for $800 
2) art classes for mural painting can be cut down to 3 to 4 weeks for an additional savings of $800 
3) supply costs and advertising can be combined and can also be reduced by another $400, with the 
majority of supplies to be donated 
 
This is a total reduction of $2000, from the initial $5000 requested, leaving a balance needed of $3000, 
pending other fundraising efforts. 
 
Required documents for submission of application: 

• Instructions: Three letters of support are required. If you are using someone else’s property, they must 
provide a letter of support stating specifically that they allow you to use their property. If you are asking 
for match, the letters must commit to providing the match. All match MUST BE CASH! (No In Kind 
allowed). All letters must be attached. All must be dated within 2 months of the grant application 
deadline and all must be signed in ink or through DocuSign. 

o Letter 1: A draft of the letter from Smithville Community Gardens is included. Jim Horton will 
sign it before it is due to TCA. 

o NO OTHER LETTERS HAVE BEEN PROPOSED 

  



5 
 

Smithville Community Gardens 
PO Box 644 / Smithville, TX 78957 / FB: “The Smithville Community Gardens” 

Nonprofit Tax ID # 27-3320512 
 
 

 
December 6, 2023 
 
 
Dear TCA Selection Committee, 
 
The Smithville Community Gardens, in support of Janus Lee’s proposal for the Smithville Cultural District’s 
January 2023 application for “Make Gardening Cool Again” by offering the exterior walls of the SCG Community 
Center as a “canvas” for her vegetable murals. In addition, we could host a “garden party” to celebrate the 
finished community art installation. 
 
We welcome the opportunity to bring people to the SCG Community Center, and connecting it with the arts is 
one of the ways that could do just that. 
 
Thank you for giving us this terrific opportunity to call attention to the importance of gardens in community and 
culture. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jim Horton, Garden Chair 
 



1 

TCA Grant Application: LPAA’s Proposal 
GRANT DEADLINE: January 16, 2024 

This grant template reflects all the questions and requirements that will need to be uploaded to the TCA Portal. 

 

Application Title: Nature of the Arts at MNAC 

 

STANDARD ANSWER: Mission Statement: Smithville’s Richard D. Latham Cultural District Primary Partners (City 
of Smithville and Lost Pines Artisans ’Alliance) intend to use Arts, History, and Culture for Economic 
Development purposes to enhance the quality of life for residents and visitors through programming designed 
to highlight the Cultural District. The City of Smithville expects that promoting the Cultural District as part of an 
economic development strategy will support our goal of improving the quality of life for our citizens. 

 

Priority Area: Natural Resources & Agricultural 

Other choices – only one can be selected  

• Economic Development 
• Education 
• Health and Human Services (including Veterans) 
• Public Safety & Criminal Justice 

 

Period of Support 

Starting Dates - Begin: April 1, 2024 
Ending Dates - End: August 31, 2024 
Payment Date: April 1, 2024 

 

Audience Information 

How many adults (over age 18) will be engaged in "in person": # 40 
How many children/youths (0-18 years) will be engaged in "in person": # 20 
*Total Audience: * # 60 
 
How many artists will be directly involved? # 6  
Confirmed Artists: Bonny Joplin, Kerry Herbert, Brandy Royster, Robin Lively, Jessica Ries, Tina Broussard.  
SCG: Jim Horton. Possibly Megan Lowery (Master Naturalist) 

 

Indicate if this proposal serves: Choose all that apply—by TCA definition, this only applies to Cultural Tourism 

• Arts Education (Pre-K) 
• Arts Education (K-12) 
• Arts Education (teachers or adults) 
• Cultural Tourism 
• International exchange (artist or art; import or export) 

 



2 

For the next set of questions, select all categories that, by your best estimate, make up 25% or more of the 
population served directly by this performance. Choose all that apply. Choices in highlighted in red text are 
the likely populations that will be over 25% 

Population Served by Race/Ethnicity:  
• (N) Native Indian/Alaskan Native 
• (A) Asian 
• (B) Black/African American 
• (H) Hispanic/Latino 
• (P) Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 
• (W) White 
• (G) No single racial/ethnic group makes up 25% 

 
Population Served by Age:  

• (01) Children/Youth (0-18 years) 
• (02) Young Adults (19-24) 
• (03) Adults (25-64 years) 
• (04) Older Adults (65+) 
• (09) No single group makes up 25% 

 
Distinct Groups Served:  

• (D) Individuals with Disabilities 
• (I) Individuals in Institutions (hospitals, correctional facilities, shelters, etc.) 
• (P) Individuals below the Poverty Line 
• (E) Individuals with Limited English Proficiency 
• (M) Military Veterans/Active-Duty Personnel 
• (Y) Youth at Risk 
• (G) No single group makes up 25% 

 
One sentence summary of the project (250 characters)  

“Nature of the Arts at MNAC” is a community-forward project that will 1) beautify the Mary Nichols Art Center, 
calling attention to it as a premiere space and venue for creativity and the Arts, and 2) educate the community 
about our agricultural history, the “Story of the Seed,” landscaping as art, and artistic techniques of using natural 
materials in large collage, multi-media format.  

One-page organizational history: (approximately 400 words) STANDARD ANSWER 

The TCA officially designated Smithville’s Cultural District on September 5, 2013. A tremendous honor, this 
reflects the hard-working ethics and strong collaboration between the members of the Lost Pines Artisans 
Alliance (LPAA), the volunteer historians in the Smithville Heritage Society, the City of Smithville municipal 
government, and numerous community members and organizations. The City became the fiscal agent in March, 
2016, and in October, 2019, the organization changed from a "steering committee" to a "liaison" structure that 
institutes no fewer than two public meetings per year intended to determine Cultural District projects and use of 
funds. The numbers for the Board include both the Mayor/City Council and the Lost Pines Artisans Alliance 
Board members. Staff include the LPAA Liaison, the City Liaison, the City Manager, the Library Director (the 
Department in which the Cultural District is housed at the City), the City's Community Engagement Coordinator, 
and the City's Finance Director. The Smithville Cultural District was formally named after Richard D. Latham, one 
of this town's most prolific patrons of the arts. Latham championed public arts projects like the Train Sculpture 
at Riverbend Park, the "Art on a Stick" program, outdoor murals, and many other endeavors. A long-time 
volunteer and past president of LPAA, Richard was the Chamber's Citizen of the Year in 2012. Richard coined the 



3 

phrase "It’s Possible in Smithville." The City is grateful for his service. Smithville is a small, rural community in 
Central Texas. The city limits extend about two miles in diameter, making things possible here that would be 
difficult to attempt at a larger scale. Smithville’s Cultural District boundaries encompass roughly half of that land 
area. The Mary Nichols ’Art Center is at the heart of a geography that includes assets like the Veterans Memorial 
Park, Independence Park, the Heritage House, the LD Clark Writers ’Retreat, the James H. Long Railroad Park and 
Museum, the historic Central School, Red Brick building, Playhouse Smithville, and numerous galleries, artist 
studios and arts and crafts workspaces and shops. The City, the LPAA, Heritage Society, Public Library, Smithville 
Area Chamber of Commerce, and numerous other organizations and individuals continue to work diligently to 
provide our citizens and visitors with many rich cultural and artistic experiences including the Texas Photo 
Festival, the American Library Association/National Endowment for the Humanities ’Bridging Cultures program, 
the StoryCorps oral history project, the NEA-funded "Arts Bridging Community" public art projects, and other 
projects, events, and programs. 

 

One-page project description (include specific information on the project including the key personnel, 
targeted audience, and goals): (approximately 400 words) 

Over a decade ago, then-LPAA President Cammy Snyder worked with local artists to cover the Mary Nichols Art 
Center with paintings to make it more eclectic, interesting, and artistic. These paintings were removed about 
two years ago to repaint the exterior of the building — a much-needed renovation to protect the house from 
the elements. “Nature of the Arts at MNAC” is a community-forward project that will beautify the Mary Nichols 
Art Center with several large works of art again. It will bring attention to the building as a premiere venue for 
creativity, and will educate the community about our agricultural history and artistic techniques of using natural 
materials in large “collage by numbers” multi-media artwork using seeds, dried flowers, grasses, feathers, shells, 
and other natural resources, which will be sealed prior to installation to ensure longevity. The City will install 
with their bucket truck. LPAA artists will coordinate the classes and educational sessions. One or more framed 
artwork will be offered as a “selfie stop” to draw more people to the Arts Center. A supplemental landscaping 
project will tie elements together. 

Key Personnel: Bonny-Lynn Joplin (LPAA Secretary), will lead the project and coordinate educational classes and 
ensure that MNAC or other venues are open for work sessions during the project. Brandy Royster (President) 
and Kerry Herbert (Board Member) will assist.  

Jim Horton (SCG Board Member) and a member of the Master Naturalists (TBD) will lead classes and work 
sessions connected to agricultural knowledge (the “Story of the Seed”). They will work with volunteers to 
landscape the grounds using native species that are celebrated in the artwork. 

Jill Strube, Grants Administrator for the City of Smithville, will manage required activities and reports related to 
the grant. 

Targeted Audience: Community members in Smithville of all ages and abilities. In particular, this project will 
coordinate classes and work sessions with our local Nursing Home, our school district (especially through the 
ACE After School program and the Junior and Senior High School Art teachers), and the moms and kids who 
already participate in classes and workshops at the SCG Community Center. 

Goals: 1) Conduct a community-wide Arts program, reaching out to all ages, abilities, and demographics in 
Smithville. 2) Re-establish MNAC’s identity by beautifying this historic building. 3) Instill an appreciation and 
knowledge of natural resources and agriculture through educational opportunities linking Agriculture to Art, 
using the “Story of the Seed” program to reach the community. 

(400 words) 



4 

 

How will this project attract cultural tourists to your Cultural District? (approximately 200 words) 

Like the famous “Corn Palace” in Mitchell, SD, these nature-based works of art will draw people who are 
interested in the story tying Smithville to its agricultural roots. Linking this to a project already in the works, 
“Sharing Your Story” — an oral history of local agriculture and food culture using the StoryCorps model — this 
project will attract tourists who are interested in an agrarian history and culture, and are curious to see the 
collages in person. The coordinators will host at least two major events: 1) a kick-off event for the public to 
describe the project and invite participation and 2) a reception at the MNAC at the end of the project to 
celebrate its completion, the artists, and the community members who participated in the program. These 
events will be open to the public and marketed externally to encourage people interested in Ag-Tourism to 
attend. In addition to being a selfie stop, this project will cultivate outreach for future art students and LPAA 
members.  

(165 words) 

 

How will you track the economic impact of this project? (approximately 200 words) 

Smithville is a growing community and this project celebrates its “growing nature” in all sense of the words. One 
or more of these large collages will be located on the building to encourage people to take selfies using the 
hashtag #AgArtMNAC and promoting a short survey that can be collected through a QR Code. This project will 
kick off the “Selfie Stop” concept, whereby LPAA will encourage people to stop and explore an art garden with 
opportunities for special selfies, and thereby learn more about Smithville, the LPAA and MNAC, and about art 
classes and opportunities to participate in public art projects. The survey will ask about when they stopped, 
where they are from, whether they shopped or dined in town, if they stayed the night, if they would 
recommend Smithville to their friends, and other relevant questions.  

(138 words) 

 

How will you ensure the artistic quality of this project will be high? (approximately 200 words) 

The Lost Pines Artisans Alliance was established as a 501c3 in 1996. This longstanding all-volunteer artist 
organization will be in charge of coordinating art production, including managing the artists who will lead classes 
in technique and create the designs that will be presented to the community for their “collage by numbers” 
approach to making the artwork for the building. Using this approach, LPAA will work with local artists to design 
several large multi-media collages. The artists will submit their designs to LPAA for approval. They will sketch out 
approved designs on plywood squares, which will be taken to various community groups and offered during 
open sessions for community members to adhere different natural materials (seeds, feathers, seashells, and so 
on – some may be dyed for effect) following the artist’s instructions. We expect to see pastoral landscapes, 
pollinators, fields of various crops (for example, cotton), longhorns, people working in the fields, and other 
agriculture-related scenes. 

(154 words) 

 



5 

Financial Information  

Project Budget – Income – all categories provided  
Income from programs (revenues from box office, admissions, 
memberships, tuition, class/workshop fees)  

$xxx 

Fundraising proceeds (net proceeds from gala/ 
fundraiser/concessions/art sales/space rentals) 

$xxx 

Direct cash contributions from individuals  $xxx 
Business/corporation support (LPAA + Sponsorships) $2,750 
Foundation support  $xxx 
TCA request  $2,750 
Government support (local, county, state, federal)  City will not need to pay for this project     $xxx 
Other support:   
*Total*  $5,500 
  
Project Budget – Expenses – all categories provided  
Administrative salaries, contracts, benefits  $1,000 
Artistic salaries, contracts, benefits  $3,000 
Facility Costs  $xxx 
Marketing & Promotion  $500 
Program/Exhibit production costs  $1,000 
Other expenses:  $xxx 
*Total*  $5,500 

Difference between income and expenses: $0.00 

Notes to the budget:  

Expenses:  
Contracts for Service: $1,000. Jim Horton and a TBD Master Naturalist will be provided stipends of $500 each to 
run classes about the seeds and other natural elements that will be used in the artwork, and will teach 
participants about planting the native seeds and starts connected to the landscaping project. 
Artistic Contracts: $3,000. Six artists will be provided $500 stipends to run the art classes, keep the Mary Nichols 
house open for studio sessions, and to work with community groups to bring art sessions out into the community. 
Marketing/Promotion: $500. Funds for creation of fliers/social media (contract work), FB Boosts and printing. 
Program/Exhibition: $1,000. Plywood, brushes, framing, sealant, adhesive, other related supplies. 
 
Revenue:  
TCA: 50% of the project costs 
LPAA & Sponsorships: The LPAA will provide funds through the Cultural District account, to potentially include 
funds that have already been collected and possibly new sponsorship funds, with the intention of getting new 
sponsors for better visibility and promotional opportunities. 
 

 

  



6 

Required documents for submission of application: 

• Instructions: Three letters of support are required. If you are using someone else’s property, they must
provide a letter of support stating specifically that they allow you to use their property. If you are asking
for match, the letters must commit to providing the match. All match MUST BE CASH! (No In Kind
allowed). All letters must be attached. All must be dated within 2 months of the grant application
deadline and all must be signed in ink or through DocuSign.

o Letter 1: The letter from the Yarn Bombers is included.

o Letter 2: A draft of the letter from Smithville Community Gardens is included. Jim Horton will
sign it before it is due to TCA.

o Letter 3: Judy will contact Megan Lowery from Master Naturalists. She or someone there will
very likely sign a letter because their mission is to educate the public through programs like this.



December 7, 2023

Dear TCA Selection Committee,

As a member of the Smithville Yarn Bombers, I am fully engaged in providing whimsical and
beautiful temporary works of art throughout the town. We have yarn bombed light posts,
bicycles, and restaurants; we did a 40 feet by 8.5 feet yarn mural, and we have most
recently added yarn bombed chairs to the streetscape.

Our organization was provided a small grant from the City of Smithville's Cultural District
fund to create a project we are calling Planting Joy, whereby we will collect 2 x 2 ft squares
from yarn artists across the country using a theme of plants and flowers.

Last year, the City also worked on a community-driven project through the LPAA called
"Unity in Bloom." The community, from as young as four and as old as 83, drew and painted
flowers that were included in the border of a new "Welcome to Smithville" sign.

As a community, we are on a roll in tying nature to artwork, and this proposed project will
be an integral part of that movement. Smithville is a growing community, in all senses of
the word. People are moving here. Many of our residents cultivate their own gardens and
have a rich agricultural heritage. And we all seem to be in the process of expanding and
exploring different ways of nurturing our community.

"Nature of the Arts at MNAC" is a fantastic project that will draw great attention to the jewel
at the center of Smithville's Richard D. Latham Cultural District. It will provide additional
opportunities for anyone to join in the creative process, and will help cement that sense of
place, showcasing the Mary Nichols Art Center as a premiere venue for art classes,
meetings, and various other activities. Our Yarn Bomber group meets every other week in
what we lovingly refer to as the "conservatory" because of its large windows.

Our group commits to participating in this project by providing assistance when needed.
Specifically, we will ensure the MNAC can be open for work sessions, and we will help to
secure the natural materials that will be needed for this large-scale art project.

Thank you for your consideration of Smithville for this amazing opportunity.

Respectfully,

a g e n
Monica Poss
SYB Founder and Treasurer

December 7, 2023

DearTCA SelectionCommittee,

As a member of the SmithvilleYarn Bombers, | am fully engaged in providingwhimsical and
beautiful temporary works of art throughout the town.We haveyarn bombed light posts,
bicycles, and restaurants;we did a 40 feet by 8.5 feet yarn mural, andwe have most
recently addedyarn bombed chairs to the streetscape.

Our organizationwas provided a smallgrant from the City of Smithville's Cultural District
fund to create a projectwe are calling PlantingJoy, whereby we will collect 2 x 2 ft squares
from yarn artists across the country usinga theme of plants and flowers.

Lastyear, the City also worked on a community-driven project through the LPAAcalled
"Unity in Bloom."The community, from asyoungas four and as old as 83, drewand painted
flowers that were included in the border of anew "Welcome to Smithville" sign.

Asa community,we are ona roll in tying natureto artwork, and this proposed projectwill
be an integral part of that movement.Smithville is a growingcommunity, in all senses of
the word. People are movinghere. Many of our residents cultivate their own gardens and
have a rich agricultural heritage.And we all seem to be in the process of expandingand
exploringdifferent ways of nurturingour community.

"Nature of the Arts at MNAC' is a fantastic project that will draw great attention to the jewel
at the center of Smithville's Richard D. LathamCultural District. It will provide additional
opportunities for anyone to join in the creative process, andwill help cement that sense of
place, showcasingthe Mary NicholsArt Center as a premierevenue for art classes,
meetings, and various other activities. OurYarn Bomber group meets every otherweek in
what we lovingly refer to as the "conservatory" because of its largewindows.

Our group commits to participating in this project byprovidingassistancewhen needed.
Specifically, we will ensure the MNACcan be open for work sessions, andwe will help to
secure the naturalmaterials that will be needed for this large-scale art project.

Thank you for your consideration of Smithville for this amazingopportunity.

Respectfully,



7 

Smithville Community Gardens 
PO Box 644 / Smithville, TX 78957 / FB: “The Smithville Community Gardens” 

Nonprofit Tax ID # 27-3320512 

December 5, 2023 

Dear TCA Selection Committee, 

The Smithville Community Gardens wholeheartedly supports the Smithville Cultural District’s January 
2023 application for “Nature of the Arts at MNAC” and its mission of providing an agriculturally-
oriented educational component. 

This project will take “old” seeds and use them as materials for collages on the Mary Nichols Art 
Center. We commit to offering no less than three sessions at the SCG Community Center at Lee and SW 
2nd Street that will teach what those seeds would become if they were planted. We will also help the 
LPAA find companies that will donate the old seeds (seeds that are past their expiration date and are less 
fertile). Additionally, we will help participants work with the new native seeds that will be used in 
landscaping around MNAC. 

We are very excited about this project. We have been working in many ways to merge the SCG 
Community Center with the arts, and this is one of the most direct ways we can think of that would do 
just that. 

Smithville has an extensive agricultural heritage. Having been built on the bow of the Colorado River, 
land here has always been a great producer for Smithville’s residents. At SCG, our mission is to 
education the community about the best plants, the best places for them, and the best way to cultivate 
and harvest them. We are teaching people how to garden for sustenance, for health, and for community. 

Thank you for giving us this terrific opportunity to call attention to the importance of gardens in 
community and culture. 

Sincerely, 

Jim Horton, Garden Chair 



Item #19



ORDINANCE 2022-619 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE, TEXAS AMENDING CHAPTER 12 
TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES ORDINANCE, ARTICLE 12.200 CONTROL DEVICES OF 
THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCE REPEALING CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Smithville, Texas, a General Law Type A incorporated municipality and 
operating under the Laws of the State of Texas; 

WHEREAS, the City of Smithville has the authority to adopt rules and regulations governing the 
control of traffic devices; 

WHEREAS, the City of Smithville Council deems it necessary and in the best interests of the 
public to add a two-way stop at the intersections listed below for the safety and well-being of the 
citizens of Smithville: 
NW and SE corners of Burleson and NE 6th St. 
SW and NE corner of Burleson and NE 7th St. 
NW and SE corner of Burleson and NE 8th St 
NE corner of Burleson and NE 9th St.  
NE and SW corner of Hudgins and NE 6th St. 
NW and SE Corner of Hudgins and NE 7th St.  
NE and SW corner of  Hudgins and NE 8th St. 
NW and SE corner of Hudgins and NE 9th St.  
NE corner of Colorado and Charleston Blvd 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SMITHVILLE, TEXAS THAT: 

1. Findings of Fact. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference
as findings of fact as if expressly set forth herein.

2. Enactment.  Chapter 12 Traffic and Vehicles Ordinance, Article 12.200 Control Devices
of the Smithville Code of Ordinances the City of Smithville, Texas is amended by adding:

Section I. The two-way stop will be added to the Traffic Control Schedule, 
(stop signs) see Exhibit “A” for the map of the location. 



Section II. The City Secretary of the City of Smithville is hereby directed to 
publish the caption of this Ordinance in the official newspaper of the City of 
Smithville as the law in such cases provides, and it is accordingly so ordained. 

Section III.  This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from and after 
the date of its approval, adoption, and publication as provided by law. 

3. Repealer. All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof, that are in conflict or are
inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such
conflict or inconsistency, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain
controlling as to the matter regulated herein.

4. Severability. Should any section, subsection, sentence, provision, clause, or phrase be held
to be invalid for any reason, such holding shall not render invalid any other section,
subsection, sentence, provision, clause, or phrase of this ordinance, and same are deemed
severable for this purpose.

5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective as of the date of adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 11th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2023. 

APPROVED: 

________________________ 
Sharon Foerster, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________ 
Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary 



EXHIBIT "A"

Map data ©2023 200 ft 



Item #20



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-642 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SMITHVILLE, TEXAS AMENDING SECTION 
3.08.009, CITY OF SMITHVILLE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ALLOW AND 
REGULATE USE OF SIDEWALKS BY MERCHANTS; REPEALING CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend Section 3.08.009, Code of Ordinances, City of 
Smithville, Texas to require merchants using public sidewalks to maintain adequate clearance, 
and establish other rules for use of the public sidewalks; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that adoption of this Ordinance promotes the health, 
safety, and welfare of the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed 
was open to the public and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as 
required by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code;     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SMITHVILLE, TEXAS THAT: 
 
1. Findings of Fact. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance by reference as 

findings of fact as if expressly set forth herein.    
 
2. Enactment.  Section 3.08.009, Code of Ordinances, City of Smithville, Texas is amended as set 

forth in Exhibit A. 
 
3. Repealer. All ordinances, resolutions, or parts thereof that are in conflict or are inconsistent with 

any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency, 
and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matter regulated 
herein.   

 
4. Severability. Should any section, subsection, sentence, provision, clause, or phrase be held to be 

invalid for any reason, such holding shall not render invalid any other section, subsection, sentence, 
provision, clause, or phrase of this ordinance and same are deemed severable for this purpose. 

 
5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective as of the date of adoption. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS ___ DAY OF _______________________, 
20__. 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________ 
Sharon Foerster, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Jennifer Lynch, City Secretary 
 



2 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
Section 3.08.009, Code of Ordinances of the City of Smithville, Texas is amended and restated 
in its entirety to read as follows:  
 
§ 3.08.009 Occupation of sidewalk by merchants 
 
Notwithstanding anything in this article to the contrary, a business may use public sidewalks in 
accordance with the following: 
 
(a) A business may conduct a limited outdoor display of freestanding goods and materials 

on that portion of the sidewalk in front of the storefront or façade of the business only. 
Such goods and materials may not encroach onto that portion of the sidewalk in front of 
property adjacent to the business.  

 
(b) Nothing may be attached to or affixed to the sidewalk. 
 
(c) Items may only be placed in a manner that provides at least 48 inches of a clear pedestrian 

path on the sidewalk and that otherwise complies with all local, state, and federal 
accessibility requirements, including those contained in the Americans with Disabilities 
Act.  

 
(d) By placing items on the sidewalk, each business agrees: (1) that it is solely responsible 

for complying all local, state, and federal accessibility requirements, including those 
contained in the Americans with Disabilities Act and is solely liable for any such 
violations; and (2) to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City of Smithville and all 
of its officers, employees, and agents from any claim, damages, or costs (including 
attorney fees) related to the display of such items. 

 
(e) If the City Manager or designee thereof determines, in the sole, unfettered discretion of 

the City Manager or designee thereof, that any items placed on the sidewalk are in 
violation of any local, state, or federal regulation or are a detriment to the public health, 
safety, or welfare, then the business must remove such items upon request by the City. 
Such items may only be returned to the sidewalk upon the written approval of the City 
Manager or designee thereof. 

 
(f) Obstruction of any building entrance or required emergency ingress and egress point is 

prohibited. 
 
(g) The following items may not be placed on a sidewalk under this section: 
 

(1) Tents, or screen enclosures above 48 inches as measured from the walking surface 
of the sidewalk. 

 
(2) Portable generators, propane heaters, or cooking equipment such as barbecue grills. 
 



3 
 

(3) Signage that does not otherwise comply with the City of Smithville Code of 
Ordinances.   

 
(4) Any item that creates a trip hazard. 
 

   



Item #21



Smithville URA 
Business Reloca�on Plan for 1674 NE Loop 230 

 
 

The City of Smithville has iden�fied a property at 1674 NE Loop 230, Smithville, TX 78957 that it seeks to 
acquire for a GLO CDBG-MIT project. The property is currently owned by Joseph Quita and is rented to 
Ronnie Sheppard who runs a small woodworking business. 
 
The city has developed this Reloca�on Plan to ensure the fair and equitable treatment of Mr. Sheppard 
in reloca�ng from the site. The Plan details the steps the City will take, under the Uniform Reloca�on 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisi�on Policies Act of 1970, as amended (URA) guidelines, to provide 
advisory and financial assistance to Mr. Sheppard for moving and re-establishment expenses and to 
compensate the business owner fairly.  

 
A. Project: GLO-MIT 22-085-020-D256 

• The City of Smithville shall construct one regional deten�on pond, install new storm 
sewer systems to connect to the regional pond, and upgrade/extend the City’s exis�ng 
storm sewer with associated pavement repair, and complete all associated 
appurtenances. Construc�on shall take place at the following loca�ons, including mid-
point coordinates for each segment. 

 
Flood and Drainage 

Facilities 

 
Location 

Approximate Lat/Long 

Proposed 
HUD 

Performance 
Measures 

 
Census 
Tract 

 
Block 
Group 

 
Northeast/Northwest 
2nd Street Drainage 
Improvements: # 1 

Along Northeast and Northwest 2nd 
Street from Gresham Street to 

Ramona Street 
(Lat 30.007441, -Long 97.159577) 

 
 

1,100 LF 

  

Northeast/Northwest 
2nd Street Drainage 
Improvements: #2 

Along Ramona Street from the 
intersection of Northwest 2nd Street 

southward for 80’ 
(Lat 30.007968, Long 97.161074) 

 
80 LF 

  

Northeast/Northwest 2nd 
Street Drainage 
Improvements: #3 

Along Main Street from the 
intersection of Northwest 2nd 

Street southward for 80’  
(Lat 30.007571, Long 97.160123) 

 
80 LF 

  

 
Northeast/Northwest 2nd 
Street Drainage 
Improvements: #4 

Off Northeast 2nd Street near alley 
between Main Street and Olive 

Street southward for 80’ 
(Lat 30.007348, Long 97.159551) 

 
 

80 LF 

 
 
 

9507.00 

 
 
 

3,4 



 
Northeast/Northwest 2nd 
Street Drainage 
Improvements: #5 

Along Olive Street 
beginning 155’ north of the 

intersection of Northeast 1st Street 
(Lat 30.007223, Long 97.159068) 

 
 

390 LF 

  

 
Northeast/Northwest 2nd 
Street Drainage 
Improvements: #6 

Off of Northeast 2nd Street along 
an unnamed road between 

Gresham Street and Olive Street 
southward for 80’ 

(Lat 30.006944, Long 97.158607) 

 
 

80 LF 

  

 
Northeast/Northwest 2nd 
Street Drainage 
Improvements: #7 

Along Gresham Street beginning 
155 north of the intersection of 

Northeast 1st Street 
(Lat 30.006828, Long 97.158076) 

 
 

390 LF 

  

 
 

Southeast Drainage 
Improvements: 

#1 

Beginning at Willow Creek  
(Lat 29.992331 Long 97.144883)  

and  
extending north 320 linear feet 

(Lat 29.993239 Long 97.144928) 
and then turning west 850 linear 

feet to Bunte Street  
(Lat 29.993197, Long 97.147614). 

 

 
 
 

1,170 LF 

 

 
 

 
 

Southeast Drainage 
Improvements: #2 

Along Bunte Street  
(Lat 29.993197 Long 97.147614) 
extending north 1,400 linear feet 

to SE 4th Street, 
(Lat 29.997042 Long 97.147689), 

then west 100 linear feet  
(Lat 29.997169 Long 97.147953), 
and then north 950 linear feet to 

SE 1st Street  
(Lat 29.999503 Long 97.146642). 

 

 
 
 

2,450 LF 
 

 

Southeast Drainage 
Improvements: #3 

Along Southeast 4th Street 
(starting at the intersection with 

Bunte Street) southeastward to the 
end of the street.  

(Lat 29.995989 Long 97.145211)  

 
870 LF 

 

9507.00 

 
Southeast Drainage 
Improvements: #4 

Along Southeast 2nd Street (starting 
at the intersection with Bunte 
Street) northwestward to Miller 

Street  
(Lat 29.999517 Long 97.149108)  

 

 
700 LF 

 

 



 
 

4th-6th Street Drainage 
Improvements: #1 

Along Northeast 5th Street from 
Short Street eastward to Garwood 

Street. From Garwood and 
Northeast 5th Streets along 

Garwood northward to Northeast 
6th Street thence eastward to 

Bishop Street. 
(Lat 30.007253, Long 97.151844) 

 
 
 

1,380 LF 

 

 
 

4th-6th Street Drainage 
Improvements: #2 

From the intersection of Garwood 
Street and Northeast 5th Street 

along Garwood southwestward to 
Northeast 4th Street thence eastward 

to Turney Street 
(Lat 30.006238, Long 97.151918) 

 
 
 

1,050 LF 

  

4th-6th Street 
Drainage 

Improvements 
Byrne Street 

Along Byrne Street northward from 
Northeast 5th to Northeast 6th 

Midpoint 
(Lat 30.006417, Long 97.148743) 

 
 

300 LF 

  

 
Loop 230 Regional 

Detention Pond 

Between Loop 230 and Woodress 
Lane 760’ southwest of Faulkner 

Road  
(Lat 29.997844, Long 97.140231) 

One (1) 
Public 
Facility 

  

 
 
 

Loop 230 Pond’s 
Drainage 

Improvements #1 

Along Oak Meadows Drive 125’ 
west of Leuders Lane beginning 

on the north side of Oak 
Meadows Drive crossing to the 

south side then westward to 
Faulkner Road thence southward 

to Loop 230 
(Lat 30.001301, Long 97.139206) 

 
 
 

1,030 LF 

 
9507.00 

 
3,4 

Loop 230 Pond’s 
Drainage 

Improvements #2 

Along Faulkner Road north of 
Oak Meadows Drive for 25’ 

(Lat 30.001402, Long 97.139064) 

 
50 LF 

  

 
Loop 230 Pond’s 

Drainage 
Improvements #3 

From Loop 230 75’ from the 
intersection with Faulkner Road 
northwestward for 300’ thence 

southwestward for 500’ 
(Lat 29.999857, Long 97.139978) 

 
 

900 LF 

  



        

 

• Es�mated Project Schedule 

Project Phase Start Date Length (months) Comple�on Date 
Acquisi�on  9/1/2023 4 1/31/2024 
Bid Adver�sement  3/1/2024 1 3/31/2024 
Contract Award 4/1/2024 1 4/31/2024 
No�ce to Proceed 5/1/2024 1 5/31/2024 
Construc�on  6/1/2024 7 12/31/2024 
Construc�on Comple�on  1/1/2025 1 1/31/2025 

 

 
B. No�ces: The City of Smithville has provided �mely and adequate writen no�ce to the property 

owner and business owner that is being displaced by the project. No�ces were hand delivered 
and/or sent by cer�fied mail. The following no�ces were provided: 

• No�ce of Intent to Acquire (no�ce to owner of acquisi�on) 
• General Informa�on No�ce (GIN) – 9/22/2023 
• No�ce of Reloca�on Eligibility (NOE) – 10/26/2023 



• Reloca�on Assistance to Displaced Businesses, Nonprofit Organiza�ons and Farms (HUD-
1043-CPD) (Spanish version Asistencia Para la Reubicación a Negocios, Organizaciones 
sin Fines de Lucro y Granjas Desplazados - HUD-1043-CPD-1) – 9/22/2023 

• 90 Day Move No�ce – 10/26/2023 
 

C. Replacement business loca�ons will be iden�fied based on the specific needs of the business in 
terms of:  

• The number of employees 
• Amount and type of space required (office, manufacturing, warehouse, etc.) 
• Special features needed (layout, power supply, plumbing, HVAC, etc.) 
• Accessibility requirements 
• Proximity to suppliers, customers, transit, etc. 

If possible, a minimum of three poten�al replacement sites mee�ng the business’ specifica�ons will be 
provided. 

 
D.  Ongoing advisory services will be provided to the displaced business to determine their reloca�on 

needs, iden�fy op�ons, and provide informa�on on assistance available. 
 

E. Langford Community Management Services to conduct an on-site survey of occupants – On-Site 
interview was held on September 22nd, 2023, at 10:00 AM with tenant.   

 
F. Determine of manner and methods to relocate and re-establish business: 

• Payment in Lieu  
• Replacement site requirements 
• Personal property inventory 
• Moving op�ons (fixed or actual) 

 
G. Project Budget: Total GLO Funds: $819,030.00 

  Total Other Funds: $130,970.00 
  Total: $950,000.00 
 

H. Appeals: 
 
(1) General Policy 

 
The City of Smithville is responsible for responding to complaints and appeals in a �mely and 
professional manner. The City of Smithville will keep a record of each complaint or appeal that it 
receives to include all communica�ons and their resolu�ons. The appeal must be filed in wri�ng 
within 60 days of receiving writen no�ce of the City’s determina�on.  
 
When a complaint or appeal is received, a representa�ve from the City of Smithville will respond to 
the complainant or appellant within thirty (30) days where prac�cable. For expediency, the City of 



Smithville shall u�lize telephone communica�on as the primary method of contact; however, email 
and postmarked leters will be used as necessary. 
 
If the en�ty is dissa�sfied with the appeal determina�on, they may request an administra�ve 
hearing. An independent hearing officer will conduct a formal review and issue a decision. Under 
certain circumstances, appeals can also be taken to the courts following the administra�ve process. 
A person has a right to be represented by legal counsel or other representa�ve in connec�on with 
his or her appeal, but solely at the person’s own expense. 
 
(2) Responsibili�es 
 
The City of Smithville is responsible for (1) determining if complaints and appeals relate to the 
business or authority of the subrecipient, (2) ensuring that a response to all complaints and appeals 
are within the appropriate �me frame (a final response must be provided within 15 working days of 
the receipt of the final complaint need for addi�onal �me), and (3) ushering all complaints and 
appeals through to a resolu�on. 
 
The City of Smithville will maintain internal procedure(s) for handling incoming complaints, 
including a complaint escala�on process to ensure that complaints are handled at the earliest stage 
in the process. 
 

(3) Documenta�on  

Documenta�on for each complaint or appeal must be maintained. Each file must include the 
following: 

• Contact informa�on for the complainant; 
• Ini�al complaint; 
• Address and GLO assigned project number (if applicable); 
• Any communica�ons to ad from complainant or appellant; 
• Results of the inves�ga�on, together with any notes, leters, or other inves�ga�ve 

documenta�on; 
• The date the complaint or appeal was closed; and 
• Any other ac�on taken. 

 
I. Recordkeeping:  

• Maintain individual files for each displaced person/en�ty. Include documenta�on related 
to no�ces, advisory services, inspec�ons, reimbursement claims, and appeals. 

• Retain copies of all no�ces, correspondence, and forms provided to displaced 
persons/en��es. 

• Keep detailed documenta�on of advisory services provided, such as mee�ng notes, site 
visit reports, and referrals. 

• Retain copies of all claims forms and documenta�on submited to support claims. 
• Keep records of all reloca�on payments, including fixed payment calcula�ons. 



• Document any excep�on payments or situa�ons that deviate from standard URA 
procedures. 

• Maintain records related to appeals, hearings, and determina�ons. 
• Retain acquisi�on and displacement records for at least 3 years a�er final payment. For 

projects receiving federal funds, applicable federal record reten�on requirements should 
be followed. 

• Develop a standardized filing system and forms to streamline record keeping and 
retrieval. 

• Maintain records in a secure loca�on with limited access to protect confiden�ality. 
• Backup files through scanning or digital copies in case of loss or damage. 
• Assign dedicated staff the responsibility of maintaining organized URA records. 

  



 
 
 

Appendix 

 

No�ce of Intent to Purchase  

General Informa�on No�ce 

No�ce of Eligibility – Non-residen�al 

HUD Brochure 1043-CPD 

Ninety (90) Day Move No�ce   

 







Item #23






























	Council Packet 12-11-23.pdf
	23.11.13 Council minutes.pdf
	23.12.07 Council minutes.pdf
	dec_5_2023_pz.pdf
	20231207135429428.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	AFS Master Service Agreement v.1.2 (Full) The City of Smithville (Oak Hill Cemetery and Mount Pleasant Cemetery).pdf
	Council Packet 12-11-23
	Airport Appointments.pdf
	P&Z Appointment.pdf
	Proposal for TCA Grant Application from Janus Lee.pdf
	TCA_ArtResponds_ApplicationLPAA_final.pdf
	2023-641 Stop signs at Berleson, Hudgins, and Colorado.pdf
	2023-641 Stop signs at Berleson, Hudgins, and Colorado.pdf
	Burleson, Hudgins, and Charleston Blvd Stops.pdf

	2023-642 Merchant Sidewalk Ordinance (12-1-23).pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2023-642

	HUD URA Plan FINAL EDITS 12.6.23.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	URA Plan Appendix Items (002).pdf
	Notice of Eligibility for URA_Ronnie Sheppard_SIGNED_10-12-23.pdf

	Council Packet 12-11-23
	20231207093409042.pdf
	Blank Page




